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SECRET 

·.·. ·' 

2 May 1975 

Deputy Chief, Operations Staff 

Reviet-r of A:gency Holdings regarding: 
Photograph of Unidentified Individual 
in· Mexico City published by the 
Warren Commission 

Letter dated 15 April 1975 by 

\~ · ••.. -~.!-
\• ·-. ·~ 

·· .... ·· .... · .. 

.:· :.· .. :. · ... 

;····· .· 

l~. David W. Belin, Executive Director 
of the Commission on CIA Activities 
within the United States, to 
Mr~ E. Henry"Knoche (copy attached to 
accompanying report) ,.:. 

·· . 1. · This is further to, and. in completion of, my.· 
.inter::..m memorandum of a few weeks ago. · 

. 2. The attachment is a detailed review. in narr~tive, 
chronological order - together with appropriate comment..:: 
.ary - of our e::ttensive holdings on th~ Ost'lALD case that. 
have a bearing on the m9-tt~r of pl)ptographs taken by · · 
Mexico City Station on (!l, ~)and Q-3; October 1953 of an . 
Unidentified Individual. As a consequence of a combina~ 
tiorf of analytical error, misjudgement and under the · 
.stress of an urgent desire to contribute to the develop-' 
ment of the investigation of the assassination, a · 
cropped versior. of one of the photogr~phs of the 
'Unidentified Individual was introduced into the chain of 
evidence in the OSWALD case on 23 No"ernber .1963 by an . 
FBI representative in Dallas.· The successive vicissi­
tudes' which have now made this event a caus·e celebre · 
right down to the present moment are de·tailed in the 
narrative. · 
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3. The attached report is not intended to be an 
answer to the Fensterwald/O'Toole article which Mr. Belin 
attaches to· his memorandum._ · (I have prepared a paragraph-
by~paragraph refutation and comment on that article, . . 
which I ·believe is more apJ?_ropriately handled by a .:'epa-·_ .: ..... r~.r /-1...,."£: 
rate memorandum to Mr. Bel~n, and I will prepare th~s as . ,., ... 1

- - . •' 

a :uemorandum :i!_-'-~~:~-=---~~--c-f:l~_siE~~~ ) · · ~?;.''/~~-;; .. ;,.·,I 

!/".....,...... ......... J 
--_.4. - Th_e point of the referenced ·memorandum is .that· · Ci r.v ,.,.~,.,;z. 

. (}~:_-- / 

~~~~~~e~:~!~~- ~~~u~~ ~~lf;v~~s~l~s!~ :~h~~~:r t~~e~~t ~~~s f1/lv J---r~ 
submission is designed to make-it possible for you, the 
IG and others whom you may desire to consult to make this 
decision. .The narrat-ive-interpr~tive sununary has been· 
put tog~ther in such.a way that it discloses no cyptonyms .. 
pseudonyms or other CIA jargon. However. its contents qo 
well beyond what has been released to the public thus far 
in the Warren Commission documentation. This point must 
be borne in mind in making a decision on Mr. Belin's 
question. To remove any question in anybody's mind about 
our good faith in this matter, the narrative is backed up 
by copies of actual documentation from our files. · It · 
seems to me necessary, in reply to Mr. Belin, that he or 
his representative review the documentation that backs up_ 
the narrative. The documentation has not been-keyed into 
the narrative presentation, but it follows the chronologi-
cal order of presentation from 9 October into the latest 
developments in the matter, and there is an overall index 
to facilitate reference-to individual items. [NB: There 
is only one copy of this collection; this is it:T 

-·/ 1 ~,o:· 

jl-u : -[-·'->· 
--~{./ 

"'""~., , ~!I.,., 
~....,.,.. .. v) 11 

._.Y.· ,-{ 

5. As not~d above, one _of the photographs taken ·in . ·~<1- · .- ~·.J '): 
Mexico City on 4 October 1963 was introduced into the -;t.- __ { .. ,. .. , -
Warreti Commission public record. However, it was intra- · ~-- ... ~~--:--i:­
duced into that record in two cropped versions. The '/',tdi•""" 
Warren Commission· and its staff were .made fully aware in ;'/"·r. · ·"-
the course of their inquiry at Headquarters and in- ",..v _.</':...-
Mexico City of the origins of the photograph, the fact · . !~{ 

--; I(' I 7 
that we had addi tiona! photographs of the same individual '7' · '· 
taken at different-times in Mexico City and on the basis· 
of full knowledge of these facts reached their own con-
clusions regarding the irrelevance of the photograph to 
OSWALD and the assassination. 

( 

6. In fact, we actually hold twelve different photo­
graphs of the Unidentified Individual. Each of these a~e-~ 
reproduced in the collected documentation backing up the 
narrative report (see Items 25- 27). Chief, LA Division, 
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had indicated i~ writing to Chief, ClOPS, that he has no 
objection for Mr. Belin to do whatever is desired with 
these photographs at this time. It should be noted that 
Mr. Fensterwald in 1971 - 1972 was actually shown, by 
Hr. Houston during a visit to the Agency, two of the 
twelve photographs, other than the one already published 
in ~he Warren Commission report. · (It is these two that 
he has published in The New York Review of Books article 
which Mr. Belin attaches to his memorandum.) 

7. It seems to me that whoever makes a decision on 
whether the entire matter can be fully disclosed at this 
time should bear in mind that a subsidiary decision must 
also be made, i.e., whether to crop or otherwise fuzz up 
the background of the photographs or, alternatively, to 
publish the entire run of the. photographs for the first 
t~e without taking out the background. Obviously, none 
of these questions apply to the passage of this material 
to Mr. Belin and the Rockefeller Commission itself. I 
think they· should see the entire documentation as it 
stands. Perhaps after that, the question of what_ could 
be discussed and the question of "how?" and nhow much?" 
could be taken up with Mr. Belin himself. My personal 
recommendation is that the more we can say about this 
matter in a fully open and final manner, the better off 

. we will be as an Agency. But it is my understanding : t~ that there are still sensitive aspects deriving from the 
· J fact that the operation which produced the photographs 
; fV"' ~ ~as ~~:ro-itn:.-ry r:m wrt::n--~~XIca_r1_ -:fia:!-~ and as a consequence 
·~ .Y /~publication at tnis ~ime would create additional problems 
v-"~V __ at that level lfi1Mexico'.. Also, it should be noted that 
·~Jfr~J{~he Arnbassador~cordlng to Win Scott's memorandum to 
.<.!!~~~7 _,..:::;;./':!YJ.C. King c:;>n 22 November 1963 (see I~em 8 in th~ backup 
· ~, _v documentatJ.on) , allegedly played a dJ.rect role J.n the 
~~(~~P· ~ecision to put the photograph~ into ~he hands of the FBI 

; ·u ~ y · J.n Dallas laterally from the FJ.eld. As far as I know, 
: ~) . there has not been anything published about this aspect 
· • ct(; at any time in the past nor have we had any discussions 
' · · with the State Department about that aspect of the matter. 

..... Attachments: 
as stated 

.. 

Raymond G. Rocca 
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SECRET 

z· May 1975 

The Photo of an Unidentified Individual in the Warren 
Commission Report: A Factual Chronological Survey 

REFERENCE: Memorandum by David W. Belin to Mr. E. ~Knoche,_ 
15 Apri 1 1975 (Attachment A) 

1. Reference memorandum suggests it would be appropriate to 

reconsider full disclosure at this time of the circumstances and factual 

data relative to the Subject. The purpose of this survey is to permit a 

realistic evaluation of the suggestion. 

Background 

2. This ex ami nation and summary of the record concerns a cropped 

photograph considered by the President's Commission on the Assassination 

of President Kennedy (hereinafter cited as the Warren Commission) and 

introduced into evidence as Odum Exhibit No. 1.
1 

The photograph 

(together with others of the same individual) originated from a highly· ... 

1 See 
of Pres 

e the President's 
ter 

S E C R E T 

Assassination 
• XX, p. 91. 
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sensitive intelligence operation being conducted in· October 1963 by the 

CI against the Soviet and Cuban 

·Embassies in Mexico City. 

3. Under the extraordinary press of effort to develop information 

·on the assassin and the assassination, copies of the photograph were 
.. 

made available by CIA's Mexico Station Chief on the afternoon of 

22 November to the local FBI representative, and later that day,­

assertedly on the decision of the Ambassador, copies were conveyed by_ 

an FBI representative by a special flight carried out by the U.S. Naval 

Attache to the Dallas office of the FBI for possible use in the ongoing 

investigation. One photograph, cropped by the FBI, was shown to 

Mrs. Marguerite OSWALD (Lee Harvey OSWALD • s mother) in Da 11 as on the 

evening of 23 November 1963 by FBI Agent Bardwell D. ODUM . 

4. The ~Jarren Commission's report describes the sequence of events 

at pp. 364-365 and 667 (Attachment B) which ultimately resulted in 

Mrs. Marguerite OSWALD's allegation. that ·she had been shown a cropped 

photo of Jack RUBY the day before he murdered her son. (A further 

complication compounding this erroneous concl~sion was the fact that 

when she had been shown a copy of the same photograph in her appearance 

before the Commission, it had been cropped by the FBI in Washington in 

a slightly different manner.) 

5. No detai 1 in the Warren Commission report i 11 ustrates more 

vividly than this one the difficulties that beset simple truth in the 
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. politicized, rigidly deterministic interpretive climate that has been 

nurtured. bY the media over the past decade about the. Kennedy Assassina­

tion ... The photograph, acknowledged now not to be RUBY, has continued to 

preoccupy -"specialists .. and has beccme the centerpiece of another 
. e 

hypothesis that holds OSWALD to have been "framed 11 by the use of a 

double in his activity in Mexico City.2 

Lee Harve~ OSWALD -Reporting on Mexico City Stay 

6. Although in no way related to Lee Harvey OSWALD or his stay in 

Mexico City· from the morning of 27 September 1963 to the morning of 

2 October 1963, at least one set of photographs of the unidentified man 

originated during OSWALD's ~tay there. It is important, therefore, to 

an understanding of the acquisition and handling of the photographs by 

the Mexico Station to review what the Station ascertained and did with 

· the information it developed about OSWALD in Mexico City, together with 

Headquarters action on that information. 

7. From all credible evidence known to this time (none, incidentally, 

added since the exhaustively unique work of tne Warren Commission)~ 

Lee Harvey OSWALD spent four (4) full days and two (2) partial days-­

about 116 hours in all--in Mexico City from about 10:00 a.m. 27 September 

2 This is the thrust of the article 11The CIA and the Man Who Was Not 
Oswald" by Bernard Fensterwald and George O'Toole in the New York Review 

,. · of Books, a copy of which is attached to reference (Attachment A). 
\ 
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1963 to about 8:30 a.m. 2 October 1963. His place of residence was· a 

small commercial traveler hotel. not frequented by _"gringos 11 :--the 
. . .. : . .. : '· . ~. .. 

Hotel Commercia--where he was registe·red under aljas. Exhaustive· and 

detailed interviews and interrogation by the Mexican authorities and· · 
.· . . . . . . . . . 

the
8
FBI, after the assassination, established that i,~ the recolle.ction.of 

all hotel personnel he left early and ~eturned late each day: of hi.s stay •. 

8. Assuming~ and allowing for the. fact of late ·arrival and early· · 

departure; that he slept one-third of the time of his stay (38 or· 39 

hours), there remain some 78 hours of activity to be accounted for~ 

Overall, CIA's information can account solely for very brief periods 
: . . . 

during 27, 28 September and l October. All coverage by CIA during the 

entire period was technical. The Station had no live source (living 

agent) coverage either unilateral or from Mexican _liaison. 

9. It should be noted that OSWALD was iri no sense "under investi­

gation." None of the facts of his defection and stay in the USSR and 

return to the U.S., 1959-1962, were· known to Mexico Station files 

before 10 October 1963, when the bare bones of his biography were 

forwarded by Headquarters in response to a Station cabled report of 

8 October which had forwarded, on a routine basis , what appeared to be 

a contact by an American for a visa to Cuba in transit to the USSR. This 

was indicated and deduced from technically acquired information on 

1 October, which was the first and only occasion in which OSWALD 

identified himself (partially) by true name. 
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10. At no time during his stay in Mexico City did the CIA acquire 

a photo of OSWALD. A careful review of all coverage, voice intercept, 

as well as photographic, of both the Soviet and Cuban Embassies ·was 
.. 

conducted by the Station on 22 and 23 November 1963 after the assassina-: 

tien, going back to materials from August 1963. It is, therefore,. firm: 

that there was no CIA photo coverage of OSWALD at any time duri ~g his· 

Mexico trip or stay in Mexico City. Moreover, although it had made a· 

cabled request on 15 October, the Mexico Station had no photo ·of OSWALD 

in its r~cords, nor did it receive one from Headquarters--which did not 

have one either--before 22 November 1963. 

11. .l•t.Y'\g:ft·lis intensive review of voice intercept transcripts· 

by the monitor and other personnel on the basis of the 1 October inter­

cept-~which had been reported to Headquarters and disseminated to the 

interested members of the intelligence community (as an ex-Marine OSWALD· 

was a Navy and FBI case under the Delimitations Agreement, and potentially 

of interest to the Department of State)--turned up matches based on 

content with rna te ria 1 s i ntercepted on 27 and 28 September 1963 ~ . These . 

matches were repor·ted to Headquarters on 23 November 1963. Analysis 

based on voice comparison (except for what could be recalled by the 

monitor--and this was not an insignificant element because of the 

memorably poor Russian spoke by OSWALD) could not be made because t~e 

tapes, in accordance with the normal practice, had been erased and re-used. 
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12 It must be stressed that the voice intercept and photographic 

coverage was not (and normally is not) processed in 11 rea1 time. 11
- The . 

means of acquisition and the volume of the information precludes anything · 

but the spot reporting of items judged by the monitor to be of more than 
. e 

ordinary interest and, therefore, noted in summary logs. Full texts of 

selected items require .consultation of the tape and either a full tran­

scription or full translation or both. Photo coverage tends to become 

available in q~antity lots which requires scanning and selection on a 

rapid and accelerated basis in four or five day 11 peaks. 11 One of the 

11 triggers" that normally operates to focus and accelerate more speedy 

review and r~porting of this kind of raw intelligence is the mention of 

a name. This was precisely what occurred in the second of two conversa­

tions on 1 October with the Soviet Embassy, during which the speaker said 

he was "Lee OSWALD." It was this information reported by the Station tci 

Headquarters in its first indication on OSWALD on 8 Octriber 1963. 

13. The Mexico Station did one more thing in its 8 October ·report 

on lee OS~~ALO based on its 1 October voice intercepts: it coupled the 

data with descriptive information it had acquired from a sensitive 
.. 

collateral source--a photograph of a male individual, apparently an 

American, who was observed entering the Soviet Embassy on WOctober. 

The Station reported this detail on the 8th as a matter of coincident 

fact. The Station did not assert or suggest that the data deduced from 

the·pt10to was in fact OSWALD, or indeed, was in any way related to OSWALD. 

6 
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Lee Harvey OSWALD- CIA Coverage of His Mexico City Stay 

14. One additional elem-ent of background must be stipulated- now as 

the final precondition to underst~·nding the relevance (or irrelevance) 

of the photo of the unknown individual placed in the chain of evidence 
e -

on 23 November in Dallas by FBI Agent Bardwell ODUM: what was· the 

totality of CIA Mexico's coverage of OSWALD's activity as of the- after-
' ' 

noon of the 23rd when all available coverage had been checked? 

15. The totality of t4exico Station coverage on, or reasonably 

inferable to be OSWALD, consisted of five (5) voice intercepts as follows:. 

a. 27 September 1963 (Friday), 1605 hours Mexico City time. 

Silvia DURAN, a Mexican national, a local employee of the Cuban 

Embassy, Consular section, a receptionist, speaks with an unknown 

male at the Soviet Embassy. Silvia DURAN tells the man that the 

American citizen was there, the one who wants a visa for Cuba on 

his way to the Soviet Union,· and he wants to know with whom he was 

talking there because she {Silvia DURAN) had sent him to the Soviet 

Embassy saying that if they accepted him and gave him a visa, then 

the Cubans (Embassy) would also give him-a visa without further 

paper work, only advising Immigration in Cuba. The American, she 

says, wants to know with whom he had talked there because he says 

he was told there would be no problem. The man in the Soviet 

Embassy says to wait a moment. A different Soviet speaks, and 

7 
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Silvia DURANexplains the same thing to him~ This man says to 

leave a name and telephone number and says he will call back. 

·._Silvia DURAN gives the telephone ll-28-47 (Cuban Consulate).-

She als_o takes advantage of the conversation and states she has -

. moved and wants to advise the Soviet Embassy of her change of 

- address so that she can receive the Soviet Embassy• s Bulletin. 
. .· . 

The man says to .ca 11 KOUKHARENKO to give her new address, then he 

asks. the name of the Consul or Cultura 1 Attacht Silvia DURAN s-ays 

the name is Teresa PROENZA and the telephone number ·is 14-13-26. 

The man says thanks. 

b. 27 September 1963 (Friday). 1626 hours Mexico City time. 

An unidentified male, a Soviet, calls the Cuban Consulate, asks 

Silvia DURAN if the American had been there.- Silvia DURAN says he 

is there now. The Soviet says the American showed papers from the 

Consulate in Washington, that he wants to go to the Soviet Union 

-and be there for a long time with his wife, who is Russian, but 

the answer has not come from Washington in respect to this problem, 

and according to this procedure it takes four or fivemonths, but-
" 

't without having pennission from the Soviet Union they should ask, or 

better said, they cannot issue a visa there without asking Washing­

ton. However, according to this man, he showed a letter indicating 

he was a member of an organization in favor of Cuba and that the 

Cubans said that they cannot issue a visa without his having a visa 

8 
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for the Soviet Union, and now he (the Soviet} does notknow what to 
. . . . . . . .. . . . . 

do with him (the American), because. they have to w~i t for an answer 

from Washington. 
...· .-

. . . 

Silvia DURAN agrees. the same problem e:xi sts with th~ Cubans, 
·' . . 

t that the problem with him (the American) is that· he doesnot know 

anyone in Cuba and therefore if that is true it ·wi 11 be. difficult 
. . 

for him to get a vi sa for Cuba~ because he was thinking of proces-

sing his visa (for the Soviet Union), because he knew it would 

require waiting a long time for his ·visa to. the Soviet.Union while. 

' · in Cuba, and fran there go t:·o the Soviet Union. The Soviet said 

the thing is that if his wife right now were in Washington she . 

\would receive her visa right now, or pennission, from the Sovfet 
~-- , .... - ----- . , . ·' . 

Union. to return to her country, she is going to receive her visa in 

Washington but having this visa, she could canmunicate to .any place 

this permission, for example here or any place she could receive it. 

(visa or permission), but ~ight now they do not have them •. 
. . 

Silvia DURAN says certainly .and they cannot give a letter either 

·because they do not know if the visa wi 11 be approved. The Soviet 

says he cannot give a letter or recommendation either because he . 
does not know him (the American) and .asks to be excused for · 

bothering her. Silvia DURAN says that is all right and many thanks. 

c. 28 September 1963 (Saturday), 1151 hours Me:xicc:fCity time. 

Silvia DURAN calls the USSR Embassy and talks to an unidentified 

9 
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Soviet. She says that in the Cuban Embassy there is a North 

·American who .\-sas at the Soviet Embassy. The Soviet says wait a 

minute. Silvia DURAN speaks English with someone--and comments in 

Spanish that they gave APARICIO telephone 14-:12-99 and to take the 

number down--.Silvia DURAN then says the American citizen is going 

to talk with. you, i.e., the Soviet .. The American first speaks 
. . . : . ·. . 

Russian anci the Soviet speaks English. They continue in English. 

The American talks broken Russian and says I was in your Embassy and 

spoke to your Consul. Just a minute. A Soviet takes the phone and 

asks the American in English what does he want? The American says 

please speak Russian. The Soviet says what else do you want? The 

American says I was just now at your Embassy and they took my 

address. The Soviet says I know that. The American, in hardly 

recognizable Russian, says I did not know it then. I went to the 

Cuban Embassy to ask them for my address~ because they have it. 

The Soviet says why don't you come again and leave your address 

with us, it is not far from the Cuban Embassy. The American says 

I'll be there right away. 

d. 1 October 1963 (Tuesday), 1031 hours Me xi co City time. 

An unknown male (American) calls the Soviet Embassy, the Military 

I 
Attache•s number, 15-69-87, and says to an unidentified Soviet 

respondent: I was at your place last Saturday and talked to your 

Consul. They said that they would send a telegram to Washington, 
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and I wanted to as_k you if there is anything new? .The Soviet says 

I would 1 ike to ask you to ca 11 another phone number? Please write -

it down: 15-60-55, and ask for a consul. Thank you . 

e. 1 October 1963 (Tuesday), 1045 hours Mexico City time. 
.· . . : 

The same person who phoned a day or so ago and spoke in broken 

Russ ian speaks to OBYEDKOV (a Soviet Embassy guard). He ·says: 

This is Lee OSWALD speaking. I was at your place last Saturday and 

spoke to a consul, and they said that they would send a telegram to 

Washington, so I wanted to find out if you have anything new? ~ut 

I don •t remember the name of that consul. OBYEDKOV says: KOSTIKOV. 

He is ·dark (hair or skin - ?) . OSWALD says yes. My name is OSWALD. 

OBYEDKOV says, just a minute, r•11 find out. They say that they 

have not received anything yet. OSWALD says: Have they done 

anything? OBYEDKOV says: Yes, they say that a request has been 

sent out, but nothing has been received as yet. OSWALD says, and 

what ... ? OBYEDKOV hangs up. 

16. Each of these items, including the texts of the raw intercepts, 

were read by, discussed with, and examined by-Warren Commission staffers 

in Headquarters and at the Mexico Station during a stay from 8 - 13 April 

1964. 3 All were made available promptly to the FBI. 

3 The Warren Commission group that visited the Mexico Station consisted 
of Mr. Coleman, Mr. Slawson, and Mr. Willens. They examined nof only the 
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17. Summing up, we can state, or by free interpretation reasonably 

infer from the intercept evidence; that OSW.ALD made or could have made 

the following contacts with the Cuban and Soviet officia 1 establishments 

in Mexico City. 

a. 27 September 1963 (Friday).· After arrival and check-in to 

his hotel, OSWALD went first to the Cuban Embassy where -he talked 

with Mrs. Silvia DURAN. The time of his first Cuban Embassy visit 

is unknown. The time of his second Cuban Embassy visit was about 

1600 hours {i.e., just before closing). Sometime between the two 

Cuban Embassy visits, at Mrs. DURAN's indication,- he must have 
- lJJ ~~ ~ -

visited the Soviet Embassy. We have no indication"who~ne talked 

~at the Soviet Embassy. 

intercepts a - e above, but others for the 27th and one for 3 October 
that seemed to have relevance. These have not been included in this 
summary because they appear, on review;·to- be excludable fran-the OSWALD 
matter on logical or substantive grounds, or both, bearing in mind that 
the Soviet Embassy received many calls pertaining .to visa matters. 

On the 27th at 1037 hours the Soviet Embassy· received a call from 
an unknown individual speaking Spanish who said he wanted visas to go to 
Odessa. He was told the Consul was not in and to call back at 1130. 
OSWALD is known to have arrived at the Flecha Roja bus terminal on bus 
#516 at circa 1000 hours on the 27th. It was, therefore, possible for 
him to have made this call. But granting this, it is unreasonable to 
believe the calls were OSWALD's for the following reasons: 

a. The caller wanted visas, and specifically for Odessa. 
OSWALD was seeking a visa and never in_ any context did he specify 
the Black Sea port of Odessa as a destination. 

t 
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did not include the Consulate gate until October." 

[MEXI-7098 (IN 69127), 27 November 1963] 

See in ALVARADO file. 
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There was no photographic coverage of OS~!ALD' s entries 

into either the Cuban or Soviet Embassies on the 27th. The lack of 

coverage on the Cuban installation is explainable: the 'camera, 

based on the recollection of officers still in service in Head,... 

quarters, was down on the 27th because of mechanical malfunction,· 

which was in course of correction. Why OSWALD was missed in his 

probable entry to the Soviet installation on the 27th is not ye~ 

explained; but no technical operation of that kind is irifallible . 

. b. 28 September 1963 (Saturday). [Note: Both the Cuban and· 

Soviet Embassies were closed to the public on Saturdays. Photo­

graphic coverage was normally suspended Saturdays and Sundays.] 

b. The call was directed to the correct Soviet consular 
number: 15-60-55. On 1 October, OSWALD first called the wrong 
number, 15-69-87 (the MA's number), and had to redirect his call to 
the correct nu_mber, 15-60-55. It seems unlikely he would have made 
what would have been his initial call, on Friday the 27th, to the 
correct number, and called the incorrect number on 1 October. 

c. There is every reason to believ~ from the context of the 
intercepts, para 15, a-e above, that OSWALD's first destination 
after arrival and check-in to his hotel, was a visit to the Cuban 
Embassy. 

d. The use of the Spanish language would exclude OSWALD unless 
he made use of an intermediary, which seems unlikely from what is 
kn~Jn of his modus operandi. 

On 3 October at 1539 hours an individual speaking broken Spanish, 
then English, called the Soviet Embassy and asked for a visa. The Soviet 
respondent says: Call on the other phone. The requestor says: I'm 
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Also for some unexplained reason, the Desk did not disseminate 

the information that OSWALD had indicated in his telephone call 

to the Soviet Embassy that he had bee~ to the Embassy on 28 

September 1963. The Mexico_City Station, however, did pass 
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OSWALD. notwithstanding the holiday schedule, went on Saturday · 

morning to the Soviet Embassy (his second visit) where he spoke to 

.a Consul. He apparently cou·ld not recall his new Texas address~ 

· At circa 1151 hours he went to the Cubari Embassy--his· third entry..:.~ 

where he had registered it in his visa application .the day 

previously. He secured the address from Mrs. DURAN and she ·called · 

the Soviet Consulate presumably to permit him to give them the 

addr;ss over the phone. Instead, the Soviet with whom OSWALD.spoke 

over Mrs. DURAN•s telephone invited OSWALD to come back in person, 

and he said he would immediately. Presumably, thereupon OS~ALD went 

back to the Soviet installation (his third entry). 

looking for a visa to go to Russia. The Soviet says: Please call on the 
telephone of the Consul, 15-60-55. The requestor says: One moment 
please, I '11 have to get a pencil to write the number down. · They issue ~ 
the visa there? The Soviet: That depends on your conversation. I don•t 
know about this business. The requestor asks for the number again. The 
Soviet gives him the number and tells him to ask for the Consul of the 
Soviet Embassy in Mexico. ' 

The relevance of this intercept to OS\~ALIJ is excludable on three· 
grounds: 

a. The use of broken Spanish. OSWALD throughout used broken 
Russian or English. He had no competance in Spanish to handle a 
conversation of this kind. 

b. The substance of the request indicates a visa request in 
the first stages of initiation. OSWALD had developed his matter 
with the Cubans and the Soviets the previous Saturday to a point 
well beyond the stage indicated by the substance of this call. 
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c. 29 September 1963 (Sunday). No activity registered. 

d. 30 September 1963 (Monday). No activity registered. 

(It is known that OSWALD reserved space this date on a Mexico City-

• Loredo bus, departing 2 October 1963 at 0830 hours.) 

e. 1 October 1963 (Tuesday). OSWALD -made at least two calls, 

at 1031 and 1045 hours, to the Soviet Embassy. He identified himself 

twic~ during the second call when he talked with OBYEDKOV--a guard-­

and referred to his talk on Saturday, probably with KOSTIKOV. There 

was no photographic coverage of OSWALD on 1 October; if the follow-

ing reasoning is correct, that was as it should be. From the context 

of the two calls, there would have been no reason for him to go to 

the Embassy. His case had clearly been placed at the sufferance of 

the USSR Embassy in Washington. His two calls on 1 October were 

concerned with whether any reply had been received from Washington. 

Under those circumstances, it is unreasonable to believe OSWALD 

would have gone to the Soviet Embassy on that date. 

18. The camera at about mid-day registered the entry into the ,. 

Soviet Embassy of a white-shirted individual who, in the opinion of the 

c. OSWALD had left Mexico City, based on all the credible 
evidence, the early morning of the previous day, 2 October, and 
could not have made this local call. 
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Station, among al.l the persons photographed that day, appeared to be the 
. . 

only person--a non-Latin, and possibly an American--who entered the Soviet 
. . . 

installation. On the chance ther.~ could be .an association bebseen the 

identification data ~erived from the voice inter~ept and the descriptive 

dat~ derived from the photograph, the Station reported the two elements 

as separate facts ·in its cable to Headquarter-S on 8 October. 

19. The Station's action was not unusual and really amounted to an 

analytic !'quantum leap," justified by the primitive and initiatory status 

of the OSWALD identification. f.1any examples of a similar kind of thing 

can be found in the day-to-day record of Station-Headquarters correspon-

dence and reporting .. 

Developments from 8 October - 22 November 1963 

.20. Mexico Station reported to Headquarters on 8 October (received in 

Headquarters 9 October) the following initial information on OSWALD.4 

(1) On l October 1963, an American male \'tho spoke 

broken Russian and said his name lee OSWALD {phonetic), 
.. 

stated he was at SovEmb on 28 September \'lhen he spoke 

4 Cablese has been rendered here, and throughout, into readable English, 
\<Jithout substantive changes or omissions. Cryptonyms and pseudonyms 
have been omitted or put into clear text. 
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with a consul t-1han he believedtobe Valeriy · 

Vladimirovich KOSTIKOV. Subject asked. th~ Soviet 

. guard [Ivan]OBYEDKOVLw.ho answered, ·i~ there was 

anything new regarding a' telegram to Wa~hington .. 
. . . 

OBYEDKOV upon checking said nothing had·· been. 
. :·' . . . 

received yet' but the request had been sent. 

( 2). Mexico Station said it had photos of a male 

·who appeared to be an American entering the Soviet 

Embassy at 1216 hours, leaving 1222·on 1 October •. 

Apparent age 35, athletic build, circa 6 feet, 

receding hairline, balding top. Wore khakis and 

sport shirt. 

(3) No local dissemination was being made by the 

Station. 

21. On 10 October 1963 at 2012Z time the WH Division responsible 

for action disseminated this report to the Department of State, the FBI, 

and the Navy Department by routine e 1 ectri ca 1 transmission, adding sane 

collateral details drawn from a preliminary file review:· 

(1) On 1 October 1963 a reliable and sensitive 

source in Mexico reported that an American male, 

who identified himself as Lee OSWALD, contacted 

the Soviet Embassy in Mexico City inquiring. 
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whether the Embassy had received any news con­

-cerning a telegram which had been sent to 

_ ~las hi ngton. Ehe Am~ri can was described as _ 

~pproximately 35 years old, with an athletic 

·build, about 6 feet tall, with a 11 receding 11 

ha;r]; ne) 

(2) rt· is believed that OSWALD may be identical 

"to Lee Henry [sic] OSWALD, born on 18 October 1939 

in New Orleans, Louisiana, a former U.S. Marine 

_ who defected to the Soviet Union in October 1959 

and later made arrangements through the United 

States Embassy in Moscow to return to the United 

States with his Russian-born wife, Marina 

Nikolaevna PUSAKOVA [sic] and their child . 

(3) The information in paragraph (1) is being 

disseminated to your representatives in Mexico City. 

Any further information received on this subject 

will be furnished you. This information is being 

made available to the Immigration and Naturalization 

Service. 

22. Although the reaction of the Headquarters desk was 11 by the 

book 11 and in good time, there were a number of errors in this advisory 

to the departments which, on the record, were concerned with the OSWALD 

case: 
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a. OSWALD's middle name was misgiven: "Henry 11 for Harv~y. 

The reason for this mistake is simplicity itself. The sheet opening-· 

the file on OSWALD on 9 December 1960 had been erroneously inscribed 

"OSWALD, Lee Henry." That sheet--unchanged except for the notation of 

the error--is sti 11 the first sheet in the OSWALD file. 

b. His wife's maiden name was misspelled: 11 PUSAKOVA" for·PRUSAKOVA. 

Neither of these errors are significant (though they persist in the­

Headquarters cqrnmunications throughout the month). More important was: 

c. Paragraph (2) of the Mexico Station's report, which dealt with 

a concurrent, but separate, phenomenon, the description of an individual 

observed going into and out of the Soviet Bmbassy, had been locked on to 

Lee OSWALD as an alleged descriptive fact. The Station's qualification, 

"appeared to be an American, 11 was transformed in the flat designation of 

the unidentified individual as "The American .... 

There can be no question that this misreading of the Mexico Station· report 

was an analyst• s error which escaped detection in ·the coordination before 

release: the descriptive details attributed to OSWALD were so far off the 

mark as to be immediately recognizable as such by the recipients ·in Head­

quarters, among whom both the Navy and FBI had photos of OSWALD. (In partial 

explanation, if not exculpation, be it recalled that as of that moment CIA 

had no photograph of OSWALD in Headquarters or in Mexico City to refer to.) 

23. Confirmation of this judgment is provided by the contents of 

the cable composed by the same analyst and sent as of 2209Z time (two 

hours later) to Mexico Station, referencing its 8 October cable: 
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(1) Lee OSWALD who called SovEmb 1 October 

probably identical Lee Henry [sic] OSWALD born 

18 October 1939, New Orlean~, Louisiana, former 

radar operator in United States Marines who 

defected to USSR in October 1959 .. OSWALD is 

five feet ten inches, one hundred sixty five 

pounds, light brown wavy hair, blue eyes . 

(2) On 31 October 1959 he attempted to renounce 

"his United States citizenship to the United States 

Embassy in Moscow, indicating he had applied for 

Soviet citizenship. On 13 February the US Embassy 

Moscow received an undated letter from OSWALD 

postmarked Minsk on 5 February 1961 in which sub­

ject indicated he desired return of h1s US passport 

as he wished to return to USA if 11We could come 

to some agreement concerning the dropping of any 

legal proceedings against me. 11 On 8 July on his 

m'in i nit i at ive he appeared at the Embassy with 

his wife to see about his return to States. 

Subject stated that he actually had never applied 

for Soviet citizenship and that his application 

at that time had been to remain in USSR and for a 

temporary extension of his tourist visa pending 

outcome of his request. This application, according 

to OSWALD, contained no reference to Soviet 
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citizenship. OSWALD stated that he had been 

employed since 13 January 1960 in Belorussian 

radio and tv factory in·Minsk ~1here he worked 

· as a metal worker in research shop. OS~.JALD was 

married on 30 April 1961 to Marina Nikol~evna 

PUSAKOVA [sic], a dental technician born 17 July 

1941, USSR. No.Headquarters traces. He 

attempted to arrange for h.is wife to join him in 

Moscow so she could appear at. Embassy for visa 

interview. His American passport was returned 

to him. US Embassy Moscow stated twenty months 

of realities of life in Soviet Union had clearly 

had a maturing effect on OSWALD. 

(3) Latest Headquarters information \\las an FBI 

report dated May 1962 saying the FBI had deter­

mined OSWALD is still a US citizen and both he 

and his Soviet wife have exit permits and 

Department of State had given approval for their 

travel with their infant child to USA. 

(4) The Station should pass the information of 

reference [its 8 October cable] and paragraph (1) 

above to the Embassy, the FBI, the Navy, and I&NS 

locally. The information given above as 
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paragraphs (2) and (3) originated with th~. FBI~ 

. . ·{ . ;$1 

Reference and possible identification 

being disseminated .to Headquarters of FBI, State, . . . . 

Navy, and i&NS. _Pi ease keep Headquarters · · 

adv-Ised on any further contacts or positive · 

identification of OSWALD. 

.. 

24. Headquarters feedback to Me~ico city of OSWALD• s correct 
... 

description should have been sufficient;. in view of the incongruities 
" . . . . .. 

with the details deduced from the photo of the unidentified male, to 

keep these two matters apart as investigative facts. ·But things did not 

work out that way. 

25. Mexico Station on 15 October 1963 asked Headquarters to 

11 please pouch a photo of. OSWALD. 11 Headquarters electrically delivered 

to the Department of the Navy the fo 11 owing message on .24 October 1963. 

"Lee Henry [sic] OSWALD . 

"It is requested that you forward to this office 

-as soon as possible two- copies of the most recent 

photograph you have- of subject. We· wi 11 forward 

them to our representative in Mexico, who will 

attempt to determine if the Lee OSWALD in Mexico 

City and subject are the same individua1. 11 
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No photo had been received by CIA by 22 November 1963. 

26. Within its limitations and capabilities, Mexico Station had 

done all it could to compJy with -Headquarters 1nstructions: 

a. Headquarters had been alerted, and in turn those agencies 

with an investigative or policy interest in OSWALD as an Prn~rican 

in the· United States had been alerted, both in Washington and in 

the field. 

b. Mexi.co Station had no .further contacts by OS~JALD to report 

because--as it was .ultimately ascertained--he had left r~exico .City 

on 2 October. · 

c. OSWALD was not an Agency investigative responsibility, in 

any case. Even with a photograph, it would have taken very special 

efforts. triggered by the other interested U.S. agencies, to have 

made a positive identification in view of OSWALD's hotel registra-

tion under alias. 

There the matter rested unti 1 mid-day 22 November 1963 . 

.. 
The Insertion of the Photo of the Unidentified Individual int6 the 

Chain of Evidence 

27. On 22 November 1963 the Mexico Station cabled Headquarters at 

2229Z time after learning of the arrest of Lee H. OS~JALD, age 24, 
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possibly in connection with the assassination, and referenced its 

earlier messages of 8-9 and 15 October and Headquarters' reply of 

10 October. The Station requested·by: 

28. 

11 priority pouch a photo of OSWALD so that Station 

can check all recent coverage for OSWALD. Forward­

ing soonest copies of only visitor to Soviet Embassy 

on 1 October who could be identical with OSWALD. 11 

It is clear that Mexico Station had forgotten that according 

to its own communication the unidentified male in the photo was of 

11 apparent age 35 11 and that the accurate description of OSWALD forwarded 

by Headquarters on 10 October precluded the identity with OSWALD of the 

person whom they regarded as the 11 0nly visitor to the Soviet Embassy on 

1 October who. could be identical. 11 

29. The Station meanwhile had begun an exhaustive and accelerated 

review of ail its technical and photographic intelligence •. A dispatch 

was prepared in accordance with the indication given in the cable of 

· .· 22 November, cited in paragraph- 25 above. The dispatch noted that .. 

· ...... ' 

·.·, 

. photo coverage of the unidentified individual had turned up on 4 and 

15 October at the Soviet and Cuban Embassies, respectively. The text 

of the 22 November 1963 pouched dispatch read: 

11 1. Attached are copies of the only photographs 

obtained ... on 1 October 1963 which appeared 
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to be an J\meri can. This s arne man visited the Soviet 

Embassy on 4 October 1963. 

"2. Copies _of these photographs were shown to the 

U.S. Ambassador on 22 November 1963 and C1 copy of 

each of the two photographs was given to Chief FBI, 

Mexico,_ on that date .. 

"P.S. ·Photographs dated 15 October 1963 were 

. inserted after typing of dispatch. These were 

taken as [the] person entered the Cuban Embassy. 11 

Attached were eight photographs: four (of which two were marked 

1 October on reverse) showing the individual in a white shirt, and four 

(unmarked on reverse) showing the individual in a black shirt. It 

would seem to be. 1 ogi cal that the word 11Sets" was probably aTiitted from 

paragraph two of the dispatch between the words 11 tw0 11 and 11 photographs. 11 

30. That the Stat1 on \'laS working under forced draft is clearly 

apparent from the text of the dispatch, which tacked on a_material fact 

as a postscript. That fact was reported simultaneously by cable to 

Headquarters at 0053Z time, 23 N9vember: 

11 1. Mexico Station has photos same unidentified 

American type who is possibly OSWALD entering 

Cuban Embassy on 15 October. Searching for 
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possibility photo-documented entry Cuban Bmbassy 

other -days. 

11 2 .. Also attempting establish OSWALD entry and 

departure Me xi co·. 11 

· .· 31. Headquarters, at 0136Z time, 23 November 1963, asked Mexico· 

Stati qn to send a staff member with a 11 photographs to Headquarters on 

the next 9vailable flight. 

32. Concurrently with or before the foregoing cables to Headquarters, 
. . 

the Chief of Station·, Mexico City, ·had spoken directly by double-talk 

telephone with the Western Hemisphere Chief of Division, Mr. J. C. KING, 

and secured permission to give copies of the photographs of the uniden.:. 
I . 

tified individual to the ~egal Attache and to make them known to the 

Ambassador. 

33. What happened next is best reflected in a personal note by the .. 

Chief of Station to the WH Division Chief, mailed to the latter from 
I. 

Dallas, together with copies of the photographs, by the legal Attaches 

representative who delivered them to the FBI in that city. 

"22 November 1963 

11 Dear J.C. [KING]: 

"Reference is made to our conversation of 22 November 
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in which I requested pennissi on to give the legal 
, ' 

Attache ·copies of photographs of a certain p~rson 

who is known to you. . . ~ .. 

'·· •, ,-_ 

.. Attached are copies of each of the photographs - -
- e 

we h~ve with the dates of the visits stamped on 

the back. 

11 At 6 p.m. Mexico time on 22 November, The Ambas:... .-

• sador decided that this was important enough to 
- - , 

have a member of the Legal Attache's office take 

copies of these pictures to Dallas, Texas.-: The 

Naval Attache is making a special flight from 

Mexico City for this purpose. The Legal Atta.che' s 

officer who is going to Dallas has promised to 

mail this material to you for me. 

"Copies of these photographs are also being sent 

by pouch which will leave Mexico City on the 

night of 22 November 1963. 

11 Best wishes. 

"Win [SCOTT]" 

I 

According to a sidelined_comment on this letter, the legal Attache's 

officer was Eldon RUDD. 
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34. The decision to remit the photographs to the FBI in Dallas 
. 

had been made by the Ambassador, according to the Chief of Station; who 

simultaneously with the FBI agent's departure reported to Headquarters 

_by cable (0244Z time, 23 November): 
f)\ . 

.a~ . • 

11 FBI agent left here 2000 local time with two copies. 

each of six photos of a person· suspected to be 

OSWALD, on a special flight for Dallas. ~e is 

·carrying envelope \'llith one copy each photo for 

airmail special·fran Dallas to J. C. KING at 

home as per telephone conversation with SCOTT. 

One copy of each of these photos plus a copy of 

each of the photos showing the same person exiting 

the Cuban Embassy forwarded by memorandum leaving 

by regular pouch tonight. In view of above does 

Hqs still want a staffer with additional photo(s)?" 

35. Headquarters responded two hours later, 0422Z time, 

23 November 1963, cancelling its request: 

.. 
11 1 • No need send staffer with photos. We have 

asked Navy for photos again, but Mexico can see 

OSWALD's picture soonest on the press wire. 

"2. Have just re-emphasized to FBI Headquarters 

the sensitivity of photos you are sending and also 
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relaying names of travelers with similar names. 

· Note radio says OSWALD lived under alias of 

0. H. LEE~ II 

36. On the 23rd at 1729Z time, Headquarters. ad vi s~d MexicQ City.: 

.. l "The FBI says that the photos of the man 
I 

• I •i 
. ·.1 . entering the Soviet Embassy which Mexico· 

(, 

' ; ,.. ~-

,· 

Station sent to Dallas were not of lee OSWALD. 

Presume Mexico Station has double-checked 

dates of these photos and is also checking all 

pertinent photos for possible shots of OSWALD ... 

37. And at this point, 2048Z time, 23 November, Mexico Statton 

finally agreed: 

"Saw photos of Lee OSWALD on television night of 

22 November and it obvious photos sent to Dallas 

were not identical with Lee OSWALD held in Dallas. 

Dates are as given on photos. 

11Mexico Station is reviewing all available photos 

of persons entering Soviet and Cuban Embassies ... 

38. Two hours later (2254Z time, 23 November 1963) the Station had 

reported the results of its effort to review all available coverage: 
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~'Complete recheck of photos of all vi sitars to 

Cuban Embassy from August through first half of 
. . . . ·' . 

November against good pr£:!SS ·photos shows no 
. -': .. 

~viden~e of OSWALD vi~it. Similar blank against· 

all Soviet Embassy photos from 1 September. 

Note, only vi sit we know he made to Cuban Embassy 

28 September, Saturday, on which Embassy closed 

and ~e ·had. not had coverage -. • . • n 

39. With this camnuni cation the matter of the 11 unidentified 

i ndividua 111 reaches the end of Phase I, the key element of which is the 

conviction, at first latent, then expressed, that the photographed 

individual might be identical with OSWALD. This applies especially to 

the Station, though at a certain point even Headquarters moved no· 

rebuttal despite the hard fact that the description of OSWALD and the 

unidentified individual were quite disparate. 

40. This review has attempted- to deal even-handedly with all items 

in the case record that have a bearing on what happened. The operation a 1 

zea 1, i nnovati veness, and the high commi ttment, of all involved, 

especially in Mexico City, speaks for itself. Equally apparent-­

because of the 20/20 advantage of hindsight--is the evidence of 

non-performance. It was a critical failure, for example, that no photo 

of OSWALD was made available--though it was expressly requested both at 

Headquarters and by the field--or that it was not more aggressively 
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sought by CIA, before 22 November. A photograph of. OSWALD would· have · 

obviated-:-in a way the ·mere possession of a correct physical description·. 
. . . . . - .· 

evidently could not--the whole successive deterioration of what began in 

Mexico City as an impressionistic selection of the photograph on· 
. e 

1 October1963 into a cause celebre today. 

40. It should be clear from this factual survey that never had 

there been a cause celebre with less intrinsic merit. It is .equally 

clear from the facts themselves that there was nothing contrived :or 

conspired in what happened, unless we have now descended to that point 

in human values achieved under STALIN in the USSR and under HITLER in· 

Gennany, where just a plain mistake is per se evidence of conspiracy. 

The Genesis and Development of Odum Exhibit No. l and 

Commission Exhibit 237 

41. Special Agent of the FBI, Bardwell D. OD.UM, on 23 November 

1963 showed one of ~he six photos flown up fran Mexico City the previous 

. day to OSWALD • s mother, Marguerite OSWALD. ODUM himself had trimmed off 

" • the background by straight cuts. Mrs. OSWALD had no recognition of the 

image in the photograph. ODUWs own detailed account may be found in 

Hearings, op cit, Vol. XX, p. 268. 

42. The photograph shows the unidentified individual in a black 

shirt. It was one of the five photos taken of him in front of the Soviet 
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· Embassy i nMexi co City on 4 October 1963, two days after OSWALD had 

·left the city. 

43. · At this point, for the record. the total available photo 

cov~rage of the unidentified individual numbers twelve (12) photographs: 

a. · Five (5) taken on 1 October 1963, entering and exiting the 

Soviet Embassy. He is garbed in a white shirt and light-colored 

(khaki-?) trousers . 

b. Five (5) taken on 4 October 1963 in front of the Soviet 

Embassy. He is garbed ina dark, open, button-down shirt with a 

high-neckline undershirt showing and dark trousers . 

c. Two (2) taken on 15 October 1963 in front of the Cuban 

Embassy. He is wearing a dark, collarless T-shirt or light S\'leater. 

The negatives of all of these are extent and are nat~ held in Headquarters 

as integral parts of the OS~~ALD and related file holdings . 

44. The result of ODUM's display of the photograph--to repeat, a 

cropped version of one of those noted under paragraph 43b, above--was 

Mrs. Marguerite OSWALD's allegation that she had been shown a picture of 

· her son • s killer, Jack RUBY, a day before he perpetuated the deed! Again 

the Warren Commission Report (pp. 364-365, 367) exhaustively disposes 

of this erroneous charge and requires no repetition here. A complica­

ting fact developed along the way was Mrs. OSWALD•s (correct) observation, 
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when she finally admitted before the Canrni ss ion that the ODUM photograph . 

\'las not RUBY, was that the photo had been cropped differently from the 

one she had been shown in .Dallas._. Inspector MALLEY•s cropped version of 

the ODUM photograph became Cornmi ss ion Exhibit 237 (see Hearings, 

• Vo 1. XV I, p. 638). 

45. The net effect of the developments in the hearings of the· 

Commission was to require the admission of the cropped photograph into 

evidence in a chain of depositions beginning with ODUM, including the 

FBI Inspector, James R. MALLEY (who had trimmed the photograph used by 

the Commission in Washington), and Richard HELMS, who deposed for.the · 

originator. These documents speak for themselves and will be found in 

the Hearings, Vol. XI, pp. 468-470. 

46. Mexico Station and other senior Agency officers strongly 

advised against the publication of the photograph in any form on the 

grounds that the Soviets would be immediately alerted to the existence 

of a useful and continuing U.S. intelligence operation, and the opera­

tion would go down the drain. There were repeated cables exchanged on 

• this point between Headquarters and Mexico Station during the summer 

of 1964, in particular fran 23 September to 15 October 1964 when the 

Station had plans underway to abandon the operation. 

47. In acceding to the Cornrnission•s request for a deposition, 

Mr. HELMS, then the Deputy Director for Plans, replied affirmatively to 
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· Mr. RANKIN by memorandum of 23 June 1964 which included the following 

additional observation: 

.· .... _ .. 
11The Centra 1 Inte 11 i gen.ce Agency recommends .that. 

this photograph not be reproduced in the Commis­

sion's ·report because it would jeopardize a most 
. . 

confidential and productive operation. In 

addition, it could be embarrassing to the indivi­

·dual 'involved who as far as the Agency is aware 
. . 

had no connection .with Lee Harvey OSWALD or the 

assassination of President KENNEDY. 11 

48. in this instance the needs of. the Commission prevailed over 

the DCI's statutory obligation to protect sources and methods. The 

11Unidentified Indivi dua 111 remains to this day unidentified and there is 

no credible evidence up to· this time to rebut the assertion made by 

Mr. HEU~S in the concluding sentence of his memorandum to Mr. RANKIN on 

23 June 1964. And the operation did; -as- predicted;- go down--the drain. 

Within a week of the public appearance of the Odum Ex hi bit No. 1 and 

Commission Exhibit 237, members of the Soviet-Embassy began systematic 

efforts to survey the surrounding buildings, ostensibly for rental 

space, but clearly their inquiries were directed to spotting possible 

camera sites. The operation was continued in any case. Within a year 

it had become almost totally unproductive in coverage on Americans in 

contact with the Embassy--a clear sign that this category of visitor 

was being warned away by the Soviets themselves.· 

34 

SECRET 



13-00000 

'. ~ 

·-.• 

! 
_., 

I 

' 
. i 

i 

-­.-_. ~ 

frv-0- 41 

~n 



13-00000 

( 

SECRET :: "-: 
\ : 

Phase I II: The 11Unidentifi ed Man 11 Photographs, 1964 - 1975 

49. As could be foreseen, there has been persistent pressure by 

critics of the Warren Commission Report to exploit Odum Exhibit No. 1 

andeCommission Exhibit No. 237 for partisan interpretive purposes. A 

considerable correspondence has accumalated since the end of 1964 in 

which the Agency has attempted to be responsive to.these requests and, 

.simultaneously, has tried to satisfy what has been its sole interest 

from the inception of the matter: to protect the method of acquisition 

of the photograph ~na-:-=tne _=-torefgn:-:Tfaisan· Y'.e lationsnip_\oll!1cn~ ma~e-tliffi 

'acq t:d·s it i·on-p·oss}b 1e:) 
'------ --------··· -·-

50. Following are highlights from the correspondence during the 

current phase. 

a. On 16 May 1967, over the signature of the General Counsel 

of the Agency, Lawrence R. HOUSTON, CIA voluntarily submitted a 

statement about the photograph to Judge BAGERT of the Cr.imi nal 

District Court for the Parish of Orleans, State of Louisiana. 

The response dealt affirmatively with the contents of the subpoena 

that had been delivered to the United States Marshall in the District 

of Columbia, despite the fact that the subpoena could not be 

executed because of the lack of jurisdiction. 

Mr. HOUSTON preferred on Agency behalf categoric assur-

ances to the court regarding the inaccuracy of statements and 
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inferences made by Mr. GARRISON in New Orleans about the photograph 

of the unidentified i ndi viduaL The. following· is extracted from 

Mr. HOUSTOW s .memorandum ... · 

· ~'Because of the publicity which has surrounded the 

Orleans Parish Grand Jury proceedings s we have 

recently carried out an exhaustive search of the 

files ()f the Central Intelligence Agency for any 

·picture of lee Harvey OSWALD taken in Mexico. As 

a result of this search, I can state categorically 

. that the files of this Agency do not contain, and 

never have contained, any such picture of 

Lee Harvey OSWALD taken in Mexico and that we have 

no information whatsoever that any such photograph 

ever existed. To the best of our knowledge and 

information, therefore, there is no such photograph. 

Furthermore, the photograph which is printed in the 

Warren Commission Report, Exhibit No. 237 in Volume· 

XVI, never contained more than one figure, and the 
~ 

figure in the photograph depicts an individual who, 

to our knowledge, has not been identified. The 

circumstances of the filing of this photograph with 

the Warren Commission are set forth in affidavits 

on pages 468 and 469 of Volume XI, Hearings Before 

the President's Commission on the Assassination of 
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President Kennedy. Consequently, we hav~ no record 
_ .. ( 

'· ' 

of any photograph that answers in any way the ·.·. ,:· 

.. ."•'. .· •.'. . -... :.· 

. . .. ~-. 
.'· 

:.: .·, . 

i n the subpoena. 
:·-.. 

11 I hope you will accept this information in. this 

fo~m in the spirit of cooperation in which ii is 

proferred. 11 

. _. -:i . ·;·. -.. ·. . ~- · . 
. ·: _· ::·· ~-: ~ 

·:· ·:- .... 

b. The Agency has repeatedly serviced requests about the .. · 
·._.: :-·· .... 

identify of the unknown individual frorn.Mr. Emory L ·BROWN,·Jr., 

Route #4, Box 82, SQJankum Road, Farmingdale, New Jersey. The last 

exchange of correspondence in our record covered the period' 

4 - 17 April 1970. 

c. Detailed i'nquiries on the unidentified individual were· 

received on 1 and 24 November 1971 , . to which the Agency responded 

on 15 November and 14 December, respectively, from 

Mr. Paul L. HOCH~ 1735 Highland Place #2, Berkeley, Caljfornia. · 

. d. The most extensive effort to puPSue the unidentified 

individual was and is being made by Bernard FENSTERWALD, Jr., who 

is now Executive Director of a Committee to Investigate Assassina­

tions, 927 55th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C.,- beginning on 

22 March 1971, shortly after the Agency declassified Commission 

Document No. 674, and extending through 11 October 1972, after the. 
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FBI's declassification of Commission Document No. 556. On 8 April 
. . 

1971 ~ r~r. FENSTERWALD was invited to the Agency for a discussion 

·with the General Counsel, M~·. HOUSTON, of. his question about the·._·­

photograph of the unknown i ndi vi dua 1. Two other photographs of 

the unidentified individual~ in addition to the photog~aph 

depicted in the two Commission exhibits, were shown to him at that 

time. -It is a matter of more than ordinary interest to note that 

on tbis occasion Mr. FENSTERWALD, who was accompanied by his 

- partner~ Mr. William OHLHAUSEN, told Mr. HOUSTON and another 

representativ~ of the Agency in attendance that he knew who the 

unidentified man was. The following is extracted from Mr. HOUSTON's 

Memorandum of Record~ 8 April 1971: 

11 3. Mr. FENSTERWAlD came to my office this 

morning with his partner, William G. OHLHAUSEN, 

1 ooked at the other photographs~ and told us he 

did know who the man was. He said he is ~resently 

serving a prison term somewhere in the United 

States and admitted that he had kno~n OSWALD, but 

Mr. FENSTtRWALD said there was nothing to indicate 

any connection .between the man in the photographs 

and the assassination of President KENNEDY. 

Mr. FENSTERWALD d1d not give us the man's name at 

this time~ as he said enough people had suffered 

unnecessarily from allegations that they were 
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associated with the assassination, but he did 
. . 

' . . . . . . . . 

say he was sure \Ore had a file on the man. He. 

asked if- he could have--the photographs, and I.­

asked hoW he could use them. He said he did 

not know and finally agreed that for the time 

being he would not press his reque~t •• -~ ~ 

The whole meeting was extremely friendly and 

they .th-anked us for our response. 11 

_, 
·.· .. · 

The following is extracted from the Memorandum of Record .· 

by the other CIA man present, Mr~ Arthur E. DOOLEY. 

••Mr. FENSTERWALD said he knew who the person 

was and had spoken to him; that the man was too 

nervous to come forth on his own. FENSTERWALD 

\'IOU ld not give the. man Is name but said he is an 

American, serving a prison term in this country 

on a crimina 1 charge, and that he had met OSWALD 

in Mexico. I asked whether the prisoner had any 

conspiratorial relationship with OS~ALD. 

FENSTERWALD replied he did not know the answer 

as he had not interviewed the man as yet. We 

reiterated that we did not know who the man 

was, and said that v1e would 1 ike to know his 

identity. FENSTERWALD replied that CIA has a 
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' thick. file on the unknown man. and that we "wi 11 

·. be furnished his name in due. course ·. II 

. Mr. FENSTERWALD 'made no reference i ri his subsequent · 
.-·. 

. • conversaticms and correspondence to this allegation about the identity 

· -of the "Unidentified Individua 1, 11 though the claim, if true, would 

be ofdirect evidential interest and possiblypermit u~ t~ assert 

· with finali~y what we believe has been the fact from the beginning: 
. -

the "Unidentified Man 11 has nothing to do with the OSWALD case at all. 

Attachment A: Memorandum by David W. Belin to Mr. E. Harry Knoche, 
dated 15 April 1975, with attachment: "The CIA and 
the Man Who Was Not Oswald'' from the New York Review 
of Books, by Bernard Fensterwald and George o•Toole. 

Attachment B: Pages 364, 365, and 667 frcm the Warren Ccmmission•s 
report. 

.. 
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Erwin N. Gri:;wold 

N ClA i\CTIVITU.:S W1TI-flN TfiL 

\Va.;hillgton, I>C :?.0500 

ATTACHr-1ENT A 
O.J•Jicl W. Belin. 

Executi•Jp. D!r.;x:tor 

· · Lzn~ i~irk.land 
Lym,1n L. Lcmnitzer 
Ron~IC: Reagan 

_April 15, 1975 

(" 

Eclg:lr F. Sl1anr.on, Jr. 

:Hr. E ~ Henry Knoche 
Assistant to the Director 
Central Intelligence Agency 
Washi~gtqn, D. C _ · 

Dear l1lr. Knoche: 

As you knm-1, Lee Harvey Os":vald 1.·7as in Mex5.co City· in 
late September and early O~tober, 1963. Shortly after 
he left Nexico City a photograph I.•Tas taken of an American 
male and a question l.oJas raised I.·Thether or not this male 't'las 
Lee Harvey Os~;-rald. The CIA and the l-Jarren CoiTI.miss-ion both . 
determined that the picture \•7as not of Lee Harvey Oswald 
and tha·t the picture I.·Tas taken after Os~·;ald left Mexico 
City •. 

-Although portions of this record have·been released to the 
public, other portions have remained classified because 
of concerns by the CIA at the time that a release of the 
full picture might disclose sources and aethods which the 
CIA felt were not in the national interest to disclose at 
that time. In light of the false allegations about the 
assassination of President Kennedy and the false allegations 
of CIA involver.tent, ·I feel that it l.·muld be. appropriate to 
reconsider 1r1hether or not the entire matter can be fully 
disclosed at this time. · 

I l.•iduld like to receive by April 22 a full. report from 
the CIA on this entire matter. 

H3 

Sincerely ¥-ours, 

Da;id H. Belin 
Executive Director 
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;sem::U.d F~iU!ef-;v:Jld and 
G>C\>1'3~ ·O'Toole 

erroneou-sly given as 'H.::nry• in the ., Q · .. ·· · · 
~bject lL'le·:and in parag.;aph two of , • · . ~ em only guess at the confusio 
·the disse~ination .. ~. The maiden sur- .·•.. . cai.tsed by the picture. The F.Br ne.:de 
name of Mrs. OSWALD was mistakenly · no Navy .Ph~tograph to estabHslt th: 

·: l:";"i"x wc:'?:o . b::fore th;, .assa:>s.i.oation of 
!?;o::;i.:!int :<~nnedy. on Novemb"r~ 22,· ·· 
j !9.S.1, th:: Ce:ntcl lntelliz.e::zc~ Agency 
j;.:;-:! t:w fo!lowin6 t~l:::typer messag" ta- · 
i~a::! 'f.:;denl Bur:::au oi· lnvestig.:1tion 
!'!:"Jd. the .D:::putr:tents of Statd and the 

listed as •pusAKOVA! "'2 
··- t.h~ mystey mm was not Osw:lld..,..Li 

"' • •. ·Bot ·ie~ Harvey_ OS'.vald · w_a~ not Ha.rrey Oswald was· sittidg handcuffe 
••approximateiy 35 years old, ~v1th an b· a thirc!-flcor office of the Da!L 

\:..;a.~t-y: . 

Slibl~~t: Le~ Hen.r'.l OSWALD . . 
· }. Qn. ! Octob~r··I96J· a reliabl.,. 
ar:d s!:uiti'le source · i.;l Mexico · 
r;:~ort::d that an Amerlc:m male, 
v;.ho id!r.tified · ·hlmS~elf as Lee 
OSWALD, contacted • thtl Soviet 
5ir.bassy in Mexico CitY i.i\qu~g · 
1;;hethe:- t.h~ Embassy had rec~a·ted 
a:ly news concerning a tel~g:am. 

. · w:tich had b.::::n S-ent to Wash.ing­
ton. T,.;e Americ:m was described 
:as appro:dmate}y 35 years old •. · 
w.it'll an athletic build, about six 
f<::et tall .. with a recedin~ halrli?e· 

\. 2. I r is . beiieved that OSWALD 
i may· be identical. to·_. Lee Hent}' 

OSWALD, born on .1-8 October 
j 939 in ~ew Orleans. Louisiana. A 

· forrr:er li".S. Marine who defected· 
to the Soviet UniQn in pc;tobl!'r 
1959. and I.1ter made a:rnngement · 

: .i. through the · United States Em- · 
bassy in ~1o.scow to return to the 
Unit:::d Srates w.itli his Russian­
born -..;!f::, Marina NL'<olaevn3 
Pus:~kova, :md their child •. 

... I 
•I ., 

3. The !nformation i..'"l p:trag:aph 
em..: is b~i.n~ disseminated to your 
rcpres,;:n!::!.~~"'es m Mexico ~ity. 
Any f!.l:-~2-::::r information rec.:iv~d 
on th!:; s:;hject wilt be fumiS:'l::::d 
vou Th:;; inforrn:ttion i> · being 
~.1 ::!d<: a•,:!l.:ao~::: to the Irnmi~ation 
znd r-:at:.:r;Ciz::!.t!on Service . .' 

{fh.:s th-; Leo:: Henry Osw::tld of the 
.: ·; .• m'"s···· ,_ t "C: J.{J:vc:y Osw:!!d';' Yes, 
:;;;,~r!i~.;-~~: R·i~!:;rd if~l:ns. then chief 

. ~;· ~:p ~-·---·.r's Chnd<:stine S::;vio:es. 
'~ .-: ~,,: .:::·· • ••• '.16~ z~:mori:!;:dllhl to 1. 
tl. ""' • .......... . .. 

:;_.~·.: RJ::',:;;-., ~;~i':'.!;al co·..!r.sc!l l::> the 
",::2 r:·.~n Cn::;:7'i;.;ion, Hdm;: ~:cp!:si:-:-.:rl 

athh:tic build'"; he· was· twenty-three police headqu:ute.fs.. The. next d~ . . 3 . 
years old and slender. · Apparent!~ the Specb.l Azent .Bardwell D. ·Odum w; 
CIA. was concerned ai:lout the d~ dispatched with tha ·photqgraph to th 
crepancy, for on October £ it sen~ · motel where Oswald"s wife and moth< 
the fo11owifi3 message to tne Dep~rt- "'mere- hidd~n. He s.ltowed the picture t 
ment of the Navy:· · • Mrs.. Marguerite Oswald, mother of th 

S b.~ t· L H OSW .!\LD ac~ed assassin. Mrs.. Oswald looked ;: 
u ~-c · ee enry '" · the. .photo .and told Odum- She didn' 

. ·Reference is mad_e to CIA Out . recognize 'the. man.7 The foiiowin 
·Teletype No.· 74673 [the earlier · c:by. howe-m. shortly after her son wa 
message]. dated 10 October 1963. ~urderc:d in the ba~me:xt of DaHa 
regarding· po:;sibl;, ·presence of sub- City Hall,. Mrs. OS'.vald erroneous!: 
ject in Mexico Git:y. It is requested identified the mystery man. S!te tolr 

· that you forward to this office- as the press the F.BI had s.'lown her ; 
soon as possible two copies of the picture of 1 ac!< Ruby the night before 
most recent photograph you have J Mrs.· Oswald's mi3tax:-. was- u'nder 
of subject. We will forw:a.rd them • standable-the mystery man · bore ; 

---:-to· our .representaiiver in Mexico:. superficial r:::sembJanc:. to Jack Ruby 
who· will attempt to determine if and in her recollection of a brk 

· the Lee OSWALD in Mexico City glance at _the ph~tog."3ph. two face: 
and subject are the sama individ- beca..-ne one. But the misidentificatior 

· · ua1.4 ·made it necessary fo"r the Warrer. 

U Since Qsw:1ld had · se.Ved · i:n the 
I " Marine Corps, whic:11 comes· under the 

administration of th?; Navy, his person--. 
ne:l record:> would have i.-1cluded · his · 

photograph. . ; . 
What the Agency did not S3Y m this 

~:j.. cable is that it had .in its possession a. 
photograph of th·e man whO' had 
apparently .;identified hi.-nsdf" 25 Os-­
wald. The rnJ.n in the CiA photo was 
not Lee: Ha;:vey Oswald; he wa:>, just as 
th:::: Agency's "reiiable ::md sensitive 
sourc.::" had c:!escnb~d hlm, approxi­
mately thirty-five ye:us. old, :With an 
athletic bl!ild and -n recedin~ hJirli..t-:e •. 

I. • According to a mamoi:l!t~um b: 
'f Helms, the CiA ne·,e:- ri:Cel'i<:d thw 

1· 
\ 

Commission to. refer. however oblique-­
ly. to the affair of the mystery man. 
In the: twenty-st't volumes of published 
testimony and evidence supplementary 
to the Warren Report. the Commission 
printed the pid:ure that was shown to 
M~s .. Q;;wa!d.8 Th~· W:rrren Report 
contains a very brief account. of the: 
incident. · · . 
· Accordi.--:g to t.l-ae Re~orr, -the C£A 

had pro•;i:lt:d the FBI with ~ photo-

2.t th~ ti.ue, mi~'tt h!!.ve b~en :~:;sociated 
with 0S\':al::l:'9 Th:::. Report quoted an 
aftida:ti!: by· Richa:-d Helms that .. the 
original photograph had b<:err taken hy 
tne CIA outs~de of the U;:ited State; 

.... ·- : t ··~- or o-w•l,..l ·:J.~d only , •avy ::. p.c.t .• ~,. • -> ;-•~ ,.._ .... , ... -·o·'r "')') , 1'1<:.-: •• 1 o 
· •· t' at 1"· ... ·-•·• .. --· • · conc'ud~d aft~r tlt::' :ts:>;!.ss~na.ton n· -· C . : • · · ..... ds f(J tne oramt3stO:ts e:<pl:!:t::!.tion is 

t···o dif•';.:·e-:t p;::opi~ w::r.e mv~.~- · . • 
·• • ' ' ' d li y bot•l unccuratc ::!>1d rr.is!~ading. Th~ 

~~-·~n'>"h i!c: the pho~ogr~ph W:!S ~ ·o~- • •· ~· •• t. the. •hou'!· ·, ... t"'"' 1 , .. ..a ·~ ' · "" '"")') '!&::.iJ!.IC!t.!On d1.;) &. ~·.," u-

:e'r.f'.d to the! FBI Oi1 No·;~;:n~c. --• · ~~-:i~:~!:i~!!~~!!:~! - - rar~t:::r.f m:1n w:ts 
i •J63.6 
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: r·., ·a r ,.; ...... ·. ~·t ·., ;..... · ... • • ' ;···-· .. ·.:·- .... , ~:.:y man- W.b unpersor 
!::tti!1~ 0.;:".!;.::! Or t:-:3t aa U:1!::<ely Ch.31. 
!of errors bd ::tccidd.nt:~lly H:"Li:ed bOth 
:t!1;: ·m3n in the phot03f:tph and the 
:;:'ll.., who ''cont:~cted .. the SoYie:t Em-

-.. 'C:l.)S}' to tee H.:n"tey Osw:UJ.. · 
· ,\:\\.The t~th w:~s further obscured by 

. .·,_.,:~-:the Report's reference· to the Helms 
< ,· ::.)j;;.ifid.J.·,it. which described the circtJm­
. ':··.::.:.:·is~wci::s in which the. mystery man wa:s 

- ·"·I 
· ·· ip!1oto.g.mphed only in the: most vague 

and. ze:n:;:-.J t-erms. The affidavit was . 
ci!t:~l Au;us~ 7, _1~64. l1 However. the 
Co~mission n::·1i:l" mentioned in its 
K-:2ort or i., its twenty...six suppleme.ni:a- . 
ry •ll~\.lmo:::s tb.:1t .it had obtained a.n 
!.:!:di::::- :iW.d:.tvit from Heims on July 22,. 

. -'iiSJ.~;j." 'b which he· w:ts; much rriore 
·. : jsp::'..:ifi~. r-::: .. Th:: origmal photograph •• 
' ; > G • ' ' •• 

. __ ·1 H.:f_:!;.:~ t:;::st~f£e..l .... w2s taken in Me:tico 
· ->.:1Cit! ~n.' Octob:: 4~ 1963."1l (U:is 
.· _: • ~ ea;,!c:r H<:lrn~ afndavll: was _reh:~d m 

-: ::i !957 .through.· the efforts of Paul Hoell; 

:,~ __ ·JJttk}a te r~~:h:~!nable record that 

: ." '·::<:~i P..!::hard Hc:lms ever told the Warren 
·:'·· .. _:·:-~CommiSsion _exac4Y. _where in ·l',bxico 
· .. ::-.; I Ci~y the mystery man was. photo-

g:.i:!ph;:d. but the circurnst~ces i.n 
which th~ photograph was given to the 
Commission ·offer. a very plausible 
s•.1g,gest_ion. The CIA required the FBI 

· ·Jto ·~rop out th:: background· in· the 
· I photo before handing it. oYer to the 
1 Co:;nmission. 14 Th~ obvious co~clusion 
'i; ·that the photograpii w.as taken by a 
hidden · s-:..~r,~ill::t.nc.: camera. and L'la 
CiA wished to av:oid disclosing its. 
lo::ation. Accordi.rig to knowledgeablll!t­
former ewploye::s of ,t.'le CIA, t.'te 
So•1iet and Cuban emba:s:rie~;. among 
others in Mexico City. were u.nd:::r 

. _ cor~stant p!iotogr::~phic surveill::t.nce ·at 
· · th:: time. It seems li.!.cely then that 

-~r:o:!rJ who, according to the CIA.­
. :1 "U:::ntifi;a mmsetf as Lee Oswald" was 
:-.-.-·-~ p~p!lec! ~..!'fins the: ~~~ex1co-eity 
· - '_-- o:::::obas:;y of the Soviet Unio.n or -of 

· ·~ ·_. :·:,1/ome oth:::: communist country. 

· ifhe first p~:blic hint that the ~ys--
• . 
i tery ·man m<:!y h::t·te been !m;~ersonating 
: {J;;'.'l.:!ld C;!r::.-:: in 1966, with the publi­

.· .:::~ti.-:>n · o~ Ec.!w:t;d Jay EpstJ.::in.•s 1,;.. 
·,','".!c.'S!, a s-:.:h::.l:l::y study of the Warren 
("ommi·;~!or.. 1 s Epstein intervie·.ved 
one of ti-1o:: Co:nmission's l~g:ll staff 

!· ~,;;;;o r;;;ca!!::1 th=: b::idcn~. H.:: s.?id he 
;!.!d as;;.-;:d R:!ymond G. Rocca, the 
,\z-::ncy•s E1!sc:! "vith t!":c: Cot~mis­
"i·:m,16 ;,J:·,~;t t:.•:: photcg::-;!:Jh. The hw­
y ::r !Jter r~;;o::i·;-::d word from the .-\.;::ncy 
~:!J~ t~1=: r.:y.~~·!rj" man VJ35 th0 1..!$.;.t to he 
(;l·-.... ::t!d 1~ t:~"! t~in~ th-:: photoyJ;>h \¥:ts 

;)!.Hil.,.;.o.l.t. ,&..oa -r"}"-;.t.l• ..,.p, .. ._ .. ...,. . .:....-- ~>.t.-• • ,_J 

OswJl.:i"? The CL\ s.Jid they wo• · 
check further and c:!il him· b.1ck. ·1 ... --~ .. 
bwy.:r. tc11d Epst.::in th:ll: they ne·t~: i 

ca!l~d him back. and t:1c Warren Report 
contlins no explJ.;ution of th..: A.zo:::n-

.. . cy's m:ist:tke! 7 
. 

:·:_.:. :.,4;.. 
1 

Anotll.i:r pi~ce of the: puz:!:t~ fell into 
l lptace early in 1971, when the National 

A,rchiv.::s r~le.1:>ed a pr~viou3ly classified 
m~morandum about tha mystery m:t.t'l 
from· Ric..'lard Helms to the: Commis­

. sion•s g:::M,r:i.l coutt.Sel, J. Lee Rw~<­
. i.n.1 "l D.tted ·_March ..24,1 ~964, the 

memo Wormed :R:~IL'<.in:. ~ 6 ·~:. • • ·: 

On 22 and 23 Nov:!im'!Jer, im­
mediately followins tha ~ 
nation of Pre:sid:mt Kennedy, tlu'::;e 
abled reports were- :rece:i:Yed ·from 
{deleted} in Mexico City relative 
·to photographs of an ~.~:nidentified · 
ma·n who visitc!d th~:: Cuban and 
Soviet Emba55ies in that city dur.;. 
ing October and- November 

. . 19 
. . 1963 .•••. 

I (On the basis of these cables. "Heims: 
· went on to say, the CIA had sent 

. several ro::ports to the Secret Service. 
Attaclu:d to the Helms memorandum 

. hr .. t" .... 20 . were . parap. :1ses 01 nese repo •• s. 
Two dealt with the rnysh:ry man: · 

iiessage to ·the Protective Re­
search Staff, The: Secret Service. 

'·delivered by hand on 23 Novem­
ber-1963, at 1030 hours; 

T.nrough sourc::s availabl•· to- it, 
"t{le CIA (deieted} had comEJ into 

. possession o_f a photojl"aph of an 

. unidentified person tlrought· to· 
h::~ve visited the Cuban Embassy in 
mid-October, This individual, it 
was believed at the time, miJ,ht be 
identic:~\ with Lee · Harvi!!y_ OS­
WALD.:u 

and, ... · 

Mess:1:;t.: to the Protective Re­
:i~arch Staff, The S;:cret Service, 
ddivar~d by hand on 23 Novc:ro­
bu 1963, at 1030 hours. 

CIA Headquarters wa:; inforr.~ed 
(delo::tet.:!J on 23 November that 
several · photo~2phs of a person 
known to freque;:tt the Soviet· 
EmbJ.ssy ia Me."ico City, :1nd who 
m:ght b:: identical wi~h Lee Har­
vq OSWALD. had b.::en for.ua;ckd 
to Washi.'1.3ton by the h:!..nd of a 

·uniteJ Stato::s offi:i::l r::tu:niil.S to 
this coun:;y.21 

i {, H~li":ls's cov-::r!.;;g m::mci•~mdt:m ::!!"~ 
firm::d th:~t "<he: subj:>:::' of the pho~-J­
S!-'.Dh:> men~ion::d i:1 t:-:e><: ro:::;orts is 

a••J -~--·-·- --··~•-_,- •.• ,..,.,.. ........ ,...._ ..._.,.•!•"•' 

coilfn.;.::d with Lee Hlrl::;_, O.>wJld <!iH 

y;ho h:~d vf:.-ited bo;h th.:: Sovl::t. an' 
Cub-m- emb::u.Jk'll. W!is it the S-J:n 

rn:y:r.tc:cy nnn whose pkt·ur~ had b::~1 
s~1.own to Mrs... O;wald?- Or wa:. it ye 
;_!nothet O:Jwald Doppel~"'lg::r? 

(J1Fi.-r» C"'fid:nc:=: · of th.e· exis~enc~ o 
a~dit.w<!l pbotogr:J.pbs o.t the unident · 
fied Jnilrl .m.:n.tion~ in th«:: Wa;:;;e 
Report was- turned u;,. by Rob-!; 
Smith. .a private- te51lucher. In 197 
Smith. th~n research· diredoJ; for th 
Cornm~on t:o IaYes~te· ASs.assi..il; 

. tion:;. was. porinJ, uver som..?;· tecenti 
decbssilled War.:'l!n Cornmbsi.on doc1 
m"en!:!t when he fot:£1.:1 :reference to n· 
myst.:.-y ph_? to. ~nd two. other views c 

·the sal7ie per.fon. ":U Smith. .C3Ue.d I­
. i!iscoYecy to the :attention of one • 
the autho·rs. Bernard Fensterwald •. wr 
instituted a suit un~er the Freedom · 
Information Act for reien:;c: of thi t\• 
pictures. The gov.::mment yielded at 
turned ov~r the · hotog.raphs to Fe 

are. pu 
time. 

( views. of the rnyste 
· m:m wt':rc taken ·::tt. a. different tir 

from the ru-st picture. In Ute fi1 
. picture,. the one ·published in . f 

Warren Cdmmission. volumes, he·. 
wearing a long-sleeved· d:trk shirt ll' 

a?pears empty-handed; i.n the two n1 
photos he is wearing a s.'lort-sle.<=v 
white shirt . :md is carrying· some:: ki 
of bag or pouch. The new photos a1 
show him holding· a sm:~.H. passp.:~ 
sized booklet and what appears to b< 
wallt":t. As jn the firSt p_hotograph. 1 
backgrounds of the two new phoi 
have been ·cropped out. Whocv~r 
,.-..--as. he rn3na.ged t~ be phol:o,gnph. 
app:uently by the CIA•s hldderr s 

veillance: cameras, on a: least 1 
· . sep3.r~e. occasiontt. And neither of 

new photographs rc;veab any,.. res. 
blanc<: betwee~ t'b.e mystery. man 
Lee Harvey Osw:lld. 

·-{ .e W:trren Commission conc:h.t 
O.;;wa!d had been i.n Mexico in 

September and early Octo~r · 19 
Re~or.:h of Mexic:m Customs arid 
rni~tion. h-us li..,e:s, a:td .a Mexico ( 
hotel !.ttdic:tte ·that · Osw;:~ld ent.: 
~..kx.ko ::1t Nuevo La~edo on. the: 
border on Sept::r:~ber 26. traveled 
b:.Js. to Mt:xico City. arri•1.ing the;:e 
rx:~t morni.•1a, :md. returned to 
lh:1~t~ St:1t.::s on Octoh~r J_2 s P0!5 
:u:s on the bu:; to Me:cico ( 
..-e:n=ber<:>d O:;wald. but th.-:::re- !s 
rr:o . .s.t no e•t;:wj:-n.-;'i t..,.;;•imorrv to : - -
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I 

ing L.'iat OS"Nald rnada rep-.!ated visits to 
bo~:t t::.::: Soviet and Cubaot embassies 
.rests he3-vily upon the affid:r"it _ot:_~ne_ 

: witn-::::>3, :t ~i<:;"ic:m woman -who 
. . . . 27 
I wo:k~d :!l: !he:: Cuban Embassy: 

Wr 
C'l 
:Jih'i:t Ti.:-2Jo do:: Dunn was s.:cret:uy 
to the C;..:~Jn Consul i.n Me.'Cico Cit)'. 
in u swo:n sCatement2

.-' she g~ve to .the 
l.!er,~uty c:.~ctor of Mexic:m F..:der:U 
S::c•.!rity on .-:ovembar. 23, 1 963; sh«: 
sai;:!. that O.>wa!d had visited th~ Cuban 
Emb~ssy !r.: !:!t..: Septemb<!r to apply-

: fo: a ,-i;J to ~i~it Cuba durin~ a 
; ::_:;!:!:-;n.c:d tr!;:~ to th~ Sor..n Union. Mrs. 
• Dur:rn recJ.!!::d. a h:::at:::d exch::t.-:se be­
~wee:z 0~-.:.::!!J and the Comu! when 

, ;~!.<::: Cub:!!": cffi-:12[ toll!. ilim his r;;:quest 
. ; ~:-::u!J r!Q.~ ~:: ;r:!;tti!d L.~-m~di'lcely. She · 
r;:mem'!:l~,-~j m:a:,in& a .. s-tmi:0filci.ar'" 
;:;:;-.:l::e c.:.:t t.::> the Sovi-<-> Ern-b::llsY to 
:;-:;-· t::> s_:::~~:! ~tiJ actmtl 0•1 0->;,r.J.ld's 
=-!.;>-~!!.::ati ::;~~ Sh~ id"!n!ifi-!d f::. e Let 

. :£.::r-;'!j. C·_,·:.:;:.L! ·N~d vi:;:t~tt !h~ Cub~n 
_ !:::::: b;!~~y · ::.:; !:--:e <:·.x:•Jse:i osM·;;S~:: Who:;.e 
:::l::>t·..;;.,-:!;.-::?"! ::~?:::.tr,ed in t.i'tc:: ~~~:<!can 
- . .:..·v" . ..,)--·.-: ( ..... ~; ...... ,-::ffi1-- .... r 23 :!~ 
··-· .. .r ..... --·· . -~.- ... -. .. 

(;{.-\;' ;J.~ .~-=:- :::,,.:. t:'1 :~ ~~_.~,!:'""!:-& C:)ii1 :ni-;stc:t 
: ... ~:·r d ;-.! :-.·; ~ i.'"!(:.:rt·;~:.v S~!·,::, f)\:: an, 

·:: :~ ir:.~t:::.: :~·:;~J ~,.,:,:!"i:' on ~~..t~ affi~ 

newspa_p'c=r r.rp·of-t,r tried to mte.:Yiew" 
her. in April 1964. Her hu.ihand would 
not permit tne man to sp.::a!<.with her, 
s:~.yi:"'g . ••she had suffered a nervous 
br"=akdown following her interrog:~.tion 
by· the Mexican authorities and _had 
been ·prohibited by her physician • ; • 
from discussing the Osw:i!d matter 
further.''lO If this report is_ ~om:ct, 

__ the interrogation of Silvia Duran· may 
have be~n a more emotional interview 
th;,m one would conclude ·from- the 
report forwarded by the Mexican po­
lice. The_ report gives the impressio·n 
that the polio.:.: were _routw.::Iy coll~ct­
i."1g i."!fornm:ion ~bout Osw:!ld's Mexi4 

c.:an trip for the Ameri::~.n authorities. 
On~! question that aris-::s h whethc:r 
O!Jran's stati!rn.-,nt wa~ g!o1en' volun­
tarily, c;nd, if .not, wheth-=r her i-!:::nti­
fic<ltion of Q_;w;lld a.s the: visitor tP th~ 
cmb<i.ssy· is n.!iJ. . 
~he W:am:n Commi:;sion may hao;.:: 

o:r.Etted " f•;ll exp!o.-atio:-o.. of this 
qu;:5tio~ b.:..-:ai..IS<! it h<:.J co!ht~i::ll evi.­
d".:;!.:e of O~•.,a!:rs vi.d to th~ Ct:bi!n 
Emb:!;_;;y. Th>::re w:::r::, for ex;:nnph::. 
0:-J'H.J!d's ap;>!ication fo: a ("ub~n ;-i5-l. 

b~·1;!nJ hi> photog~.::r,:h a.,J .,ignl­
tu~e.3 1 ?..nJ ;: leiter rep~Jrt~':!iy wri"rtt:n 
by O;·,;;:!lu to the S.:~•;i;::\ Eo.~b..1s:>v i11 
\i;".::s:"fi_rt#.rron ref.arrJ·-· J: ,.,., f.,: .. •. ; a:lo t>_: ""h"' 

· • ._... , h la<C'!> ll.o. ~ .. ~~ l',.;).t. ILV 11. -

o~~:t:! Em"t>.IS.'>:t. 12 Th~ ::J:J;e,;s bno~ 
[()'.!:H! l!rt:nr:g u,~,.;aL:fs PO"t$-t:SS!OnJ. 

moreoYe.r, conta uran s name :me 
telephone· nu111b1=r. But t~ only cred 
i.bl~ eye~itne-Ss te'tiih.ony that Oswal< 
in r .. ct "vmtecr t~ ~mba.ssy··. i!;. lli• 

· statement of Silvia. DUran. 
h Wh-en y!ewed- in -".tha light· ·or ·th· 

11-~ec;;ri.tly dbclcs.l:d -evidenc.e su~ 
that -5o~r.er· mi.3ht- h:mt visited th.< 
·ernba·ssy_. unpe~~.atins Oswald, th: 
·commissio;r's failure:·· to settle: c-om 
p~tely -_ t.'r..c ·. q~jon of the thre1 
~rnisidentifi<!d plioto;r - seems e::draor 
dinary. I~ i; prObabl& th:~t. the CIA die 
i>l fact supply an expbnation of tht 

-photographs. that wra enough to !atisf.; 
the Commission at the time. If so. thai 
explanation reqtains a part of th< 
classified Warren Commission- docu­
ments not available to-the public. 

- ,I., R:1ymond Rocca {who. until- hi: 
f'V'""irece;tt re.s!gnation. was the Agency': 

action officer for ::11! ppst-Warren Re­
port inquiries ~bout t.'le matter) told 
o~:: of the authors that the ClA could 
not identi::'.r. the rnyst.::i')' m:!.~i; 
so. we m:~y w • .ow the Agency 
could h.J.'Ie offl!rt:d a Sltisf:rctozy ex:­
_p!:m:Itioa ~f th:: incident ro the Com­
mis~:o:-t. Unt!! addition:~! c!ocuments 
beJ;:ing o:l thi,. r.att<:r a"r:.! decbss.i.fi.e:d, 
l:h~ COilcluslon th.:.t O.>wa!~ r;:at!y 'Pi;;it­
ed th.: O.:.ban Embzs;y r.n:st rc:m:1in in 
sum~ c!o'.i~t. ll!Jt ev:::rt if h.: did. th:! 
~·.!.:.>tio::-~ w!~C:th..:.- SOi:leort.: wa:> nev.:-r­
til-!kss try!n~ ttJ. L-:-tpc::rso:a::c: him n:­
m-!i~s a ~.::-udal on:e. 
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t:1.! SO·;:~·~· ~~.d c-~O:.tn e,~bas:i.i.:s L.1. thJ 
' ~ . . . 

::.!r!y zut'.l:::l:l o~ 1963. whJ.t L-nplic:t-
. :;:;;u · :ni,g.'lt b.:! drawn from this t.li~­

:o·;i!ry? O:t<! obv!ous bt:::J?retation i3 
· ch.:!t some:one sous}tt to countc::r!c:il: a 

.. 'trcsh connection betwee.!'l the man who 
_ -i_,:J•:ls. soo_n . ~o _ o:come . the accusc:d 

·. ".·_,:·_r•resHlc:nnal a::;.sassm and the ~overn--. 

· m:nts of thos.:: two communist' ·coue:- · 
·. But it is not nece::;s.ary to· 
b.t:: f!,l~t:ier. If .someone we:-:: 

jr~i to . 'impe~<;~a:.tte CSw:ald eigi:r."t 
e:ks .. hefi:m: tllh:'--~~:'ltio~:-, the 
.;:-::;, Coi'J:1mi:ssion's ~·ear) · oi a lon~ .. : 

·s:.u:;b;, "unconn::ct:d. wit:h · cC:m .. :-. ·_; 
_...ir~i:::i, is ·seriouSly underm · ::!lld 

• ·:.!.3.:: 'sh.ciuld be 'h:~oeiited. · 
. . . ' . ' .. . 

could b-:.. of ·course, an ... 
exp1:.tnati.on· of how the C[A 

zn¢'.'!o · mis!d~nti(~ ~the. mystery .man 
!..:::-: H'lrvc:y Oswaid: Oswald mav 

. : .::·' ·· ct!•::it!y .,l:o .. .:we 'l<:isito::<i-. ·the Cuban and 
:.: ::~:ctzi~ov i '! r em ba.:;.s.ias,. If th.i3 · were the c:1s.e 

,~)"t;;~; he:l; somewh~re · in· the CIA'_s file~ 
"'' i~e:-e should be pho.!:ographs of the · 
,.. cal Lee Huvey Oswald departing from 

• te· .. Sovi;::t _and Cuban embassies. in 
·co C!i:y. U those · photographs 

· '::xist, thei.r ;mblicrition would h~lp to 
· ., f:!ttle the question. If they don't, fue · 
. ·.-riA should now explai."l why not. In _. 
. ~.ither cas.:. it should abo rlisclo5-e what 
-~ know3 ·about the man it wrongly 

. . .if:~d · <B Oswald on two sepaute 
s • .' It should· explain why it 

. . 

1 

th:1t thi:~ man was not imper-

ronating Oswald. AU these matters I( 
ihouid be ci:lrific:d both by the ClA 
bs;:U. and by the congressional com­
-rittee:s th:1t are about to investig::\te its 
rctivities.. 0 

. ·"I 

.. -.l 
·.; 

Ti::: NJtio~ll Arci,;-,~~ · Vi··-·,.,:~"~o~ r:c. . . . ... . v.. . ....... .,.. "( 

2 lbid. Her coi-r::ct m:~id.::n n~:ne w:~~ ' 
Pru.w.Xo·la. 
3 Report of the Presia~nt's Commi.:.;ior. 
on the As.s:it.rlnat!on of Pusider.t Ken­
nedy (US Covernm~ni: Pri.,ti.-13 Office, 
1964), p. 144. (H_et::after, !?-zport.) · . 

4C · · n · omm1sston ocurnc:nt '631, op cit. 
5 Ibid~ 
& . ~, . . • -· . 

· · Hearing~ Be/i::i'n! the Pre.tfd~'lt"s Com- . 
mis:rion on the' A:::a.;.;"ina:ion of Pre.rf., 
dent Kennedy (US Govemrn':!nt P.ri.'lt­
ing Office, 1954), Vol. 11, · p. · 469 
(hereafter, Hearings). · 

-,Ibid.; p. 463. 
8 Ibi~ .• Odum Exhibit L 

'Report, p; 364. 
l . ' 0 Ibid., pp. 364-365. 
I i . . • . 

Hearing:, Vol.Jl, p. 469: 
•ac .- . n omm1SS1on· · ocurnent 1 !87, The 
National Archives, Washin_gton, DC. 
13 Ibid.. . . 

.t4u . ·v , . . neanng:, oa. 1 I, p. 469 • 
... zsE· d . . 

, . . ward Jay Epstein, lnqz.ust: The · 

.·. 

JVarren Commission and the Es.tablish­
ment of TP..lth (Vi.'{in,&, .1966,) • 
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